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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion

and Analysis
FEREREEENRED N

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China Automotive
Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011.

Final Dividend
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration
parts and infrastructure. It manufactures its products with single layer
or multiple layers of nonwoven fabric in accordance with specific
requirements and standards of different customers. Most of the Group’s
customers are primary manufacturers and suppliers of automotive parts
in the PRC. The majority of the Group’s products are further processed by
these customers in order to make different automotive parts such as floor,
head lining, seat cover, parcel tray, trunk, luggage-side trim, hubcap and
car-mat, which are of different characteristics and are to be applied for
different usages in passenger vehicles.

According to the statistics released from China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers, the production and sales of passenger vehicles were
approximately 14,485,000 units and 14,472,000 units respectively in
2011, representing an increase of approximately 4.23% and 5.19%.
These favorable growth in passenger vehicles market resulted an increase
in demand of automotive interior decoration materials of the Group
during 2011.
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Chairman'’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FRBEREERNT WA (F

Expansion of production capacity

At the beginning of 2011, the annual production capacity of nonwoven
fabric of the Group was around 16 million meter squares. To cope with
the anticipated production growth in 2011, the Group expanded its
production by upgrading the production lines as well as purchasing new
machineries. By end of 2011, the aggregate annual production capacity of
nonwoven fabric increased to around 18 million meter squares.

Diversification of customer base

After years of expansion of production capacity, the Group was capable
of accepting more sales orders with different price ranges which became
a competitive advantage of the Group to diversify customer base and
solicit more sales orders from customers. During the year, around 8.4% of
the Group's revenue was contributed from new customers of the Group.

Placing of new shares

On 17 October 2011, the Group announced a placing of up to
40,000,000 new shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.25 per placing
share. Net proceeds from the placing was approximately HK$9 million,
representing a net issue price of approximately HK$0.225 per new share,
which was intended to be used for opportunistic investments should
appropriate opportunities arise and/or for the general working capital
of the Group. On 3 November 2011, the placing of new shares was
completed where a total of 40,000,000 new shares were issued.

Change of use of proceeds

The Group originally intended to apply part of the net proceeds from the
initial public offering of the shares of the Company for the construction
of new factory premises. After a year-round effort, the Group still could
not identify suitable land with adequate supporting infrastructure to
implement this plan. The Group expected part of the net proceeds would
not be utilised as intended in the short term. Therefore, on 22 November
2011, for the efficiency of use of proceeds, the Group changed the
proposed use of net proceeds originally allocated for the acquisition
of land and construction of new factory premises to the expansion of
production capacity and the research and development of new products.
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Chairman'’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IRBEREERBNTWED T (F

Financial Review

Revenue

The Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010
was illustrated as follows:

Nonwoven fabric for use in automobiles AR AE M EL
Sale of automotive floor carpets REEH A EE
Sale of other automotive parts BRI E

Nonwoven fabric for use in infrastructure AREENEST

5t %5 1B R

D ON

HE-FT —FR-F-FF+-A=1-ALF
E - AREOBARTOT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2011 2010
—g—-5  -z-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFRT  ARMTT
96,771 75,773
56,121 43,048
3,584 4,269
156,476 123,090

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s revenue increased to
approximately RMB156.5 million compared to approximately RMB123.1
million in 2010, representing an increase of approximately 27.1%. The
increase in the Group's revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in
demand of the Group’s products under the stable growth of production
and sales of passenger vehicles in the PRC. Furthermore, as the Group’s
customers mostly supplied their products to Korean brand automotive
manufacturers, the continuous growth in sales of Korean brand passenger
vehicles also contributed a growth of business of the Group.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately RMB12.7 million
or 43.3% from approximately RMB29.3 million in 2010 to approximately
RMB42.0 million in 2011. The increase was mainly attributable to the
restructuring of production lines to improve operational efficiency, the
decrease in cost of production as well as the expansion of the Group’s
business.

Other income

The Group's other income for the year ended 31 December 2011
decreased by approximately RMB6.2 million from approximately RMB7.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2010 to approximately RMB1.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2011. The substantial decrease
was mainly due to a drop in technical support income from suppliers and
no PRC government grant during the year.
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Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs increased by approximately RMB1.0
million or 16.4% from approximately RMB6.7 million in the year ended
31 December 2010 to RMB7.7 million in the year ended 31 December
2011. The increase was mainly due to an increase of transportation costs
by approximately RMB1.4 million or 27.1% under the expansion of the
Group's business.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB1.6 million
or 16.9% from approximately RMB9.7 million in the year ended 31
December 2010 to approximately RMB11.3 million in the year ended 31
December 2011. The increase was principally attributable to the increase
in the Group's staff costs (including directors’ remuneration and pension)
in relation to expansion of the Group’s business.

Finance costs

The finance costs decreased by approximately RMBO0.2 million or 12.3%
from approximately RMB1.7 million in the year ended 31 December 2010
to approximately RMB1.5 million in the year ended 31 December 2011.
The decrease was because there was no net foreign exchange loss during
the year.

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company

The profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB18.9 million for the year of 2011 compared with
approximately RMB14.5 million for the corresponding year of 2010. The
increase was mainly due to an increase in revenue of the Group under the
continuous growth in automotive industry in the PRC.

According to the statistics released from China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers, although the growth of total number of automobile
production and sales was slowing down, the production and sales of
passenger vehicles still realized a stable growth of 4.23% and 5.19%
in 2011. Under the increasing personal income in the PRC, the Group
expected that this trend will continue and the production and sales of
passenger vehicles in the PRC will record an steady growth in 2012.

As the Group's products are ultimately used in the passenger vehicles,
the prospect of the Group is still promising. To keep a steady pace of

development, the Group will continuously deploy its resources on:

1) improving the production lines in order to expand the production
capacity;

ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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Chairman'’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IRBEREERBNTWED T (F

2) installing new machineries to suit the customers’ varying
requirements and demand on high-end products;

3) conducting research and development to keep up with the latest
technological trends in relation to product specifications;

4)  accelerating the launch of new products to capture extra market
share and expand the market coverage in the PRC; and

5)  strengthening the quality control systems to retain customer loyalty
and reinforce the Group’s reputation in the nonwoven fabric
industry in the PRC.

Going forward, with a view to achieving better return and enhancing
the expansion of the Group, the Group will look for potential investment

opportunities to diversify its business scope.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Current ratio mEh LR

2) REFBE  UNARFHBHER T EHL
BERBR

3)  ETHE  UEARERSRNSHIRINEE L
SRRSO

4)  IRMELFEmR - SARATISEA T RN
BOmEEEEX &

5 IMREEEERS ARRBEEEEHFNIEE
AEERESHHEREPEOOR -

RERE  RERELELRMMEAEENER -
AEBERNEEENNRERE  BRZTEBRE
¥IR#E -

REBMERFBER

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-8
2011 2010
—B——F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARKETTT
109,033 98,862
42,556 49,085
2.56 2.01

The current ratio of the Group at 31 December 2011 was 2.56 times as
compared to that of 2.01 times as at 31 December 2010. It was mainly
resulted from the net proceeds raised from the placing of shares on 3
November 2011 as well as the growth of the Group’s business.

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s gearing ratio (represented by totals
of borrowings and finance lease payable divided by summation of total
bank borrowings and finance lease payable and equity) amounted to
approximately 18.3% (2010: 20.5%).

The Group generally financed its operations by internal cash resources
and bank financing. On 3 November 2011, 40,000,000 shares of the
Company were placed and allotted to independent investors at HK$0.25.
The net proceeds of the placing was approximately RMB7.4 million.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IRBEREERBNTWED T (F

At 31 December 2011, cash and bank balances of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB16.4 million (2010: RMB19.0 million), and
approximately RMB6.0 million (2010: RMB2.9 million) of which are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and Euro. Taking
into account the Group's cash reserves and recurring cash flows from its
operations, the Group’s financial position is stable and healthy.

In order to secure the supply of materials and to stabilize the price
thereof in future, the Group placed trade deposits of approximately
RMB6.9 million (2010: RMB11 million) with the suppliers by the end of 31
December 2011.

Comparison of Business Objectives With Actual
Business Progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 21 September 2010 (the “Prospectus”) with the Group’s
actual business progress for the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out
below:

Business objectives as stated in the
Prospectus

RRERFMEREE

Actual business progress

BRXKER

RZZE—F+ZA=+—H8  Fx5EHRL MBRTHE
BAOBARM164EETL(ZZE—ZF : ARK19.0
BEL) HRAHARBOOEETL(ZE—TF : A
R 9B5E L) BT « ETTKBUTHIE - £EEAR
SERSREBREAEBNEERRSRER  ~NEH
Bk T AR -

RERB RO EERIZEER  AREREBE—
T——F+ A=t HAHREHXNRENES
REHNARBIEET(ZZT—ZF: ARBIEE
7T) °

EBECREREBER LR

ARBAPA-_Z-TFAA-T - HNARERR
((HEERDAENEFAREAEEEE_T——
FT A=+ BLEFENEREGER LB
I

1. Expansion of production capacity

IBFREERE

— Upgrading two existing production
lines

— I MIERALEER

— Installing new equipment for perfection
of production
— BRMBHENTSEE

production lines.

The Group completed upgrading the existing production lines.

AEEETRBEREEERZ IR -

The Group installed new PE coating production line for perfection of existing

AEEEREMBRBATERGLER -
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Chairman'’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FRBEREERNTWED T (F)

Business objectives as stated in the

Prospectus

BRERFLEREE

2.

Acquisition of land and construction
of new factory premises

BB E L R BT R

Constructing factory premises

et

Actual business progress

The Group originally intended to acquire a land situated in Xibeiyuan District of
the Xishan Economic Development Zone of Jiangsu Province, the PRC for the
construction of new factory premises. As inadequate supporting infrastructure to
the said land, the Group could not reach a proposal on the terms of acquiring land
with the Management Committee of Xibeiyuan District of the Xishan Economic
Development Zone of Jiangsu Province. The Group has also attempted to explore
another land located around the Group's existing factory premises in Fongian Town
with favorable offer for the construction of new factory premises but no suitable land
was identified. The Group will continue to identify suitable land with favorable offer
for the construction of factory premises.

RE B RS EIUWE — B AP BUI &S 35 1L ER R 5 R E 2 it A S
BE o B bty TIREEDR - NEEEEAEE i 2 (S EIERE 510
KEREEHIEREEZESENES - ARETERY ML REERY
AR B RE B IR EE s TEENRE - EDARDEISE . Tith - AEEK
EEDEBBERRG 2B IIABEEE -

Development of new products

PR3 E M

Research and development
o R f g

— Noise-absorbing and heat-insulating
nonwoven fabric;
—RE RRAESM

— Nonwoven fabric for filtering system of
high-speed trains; and
— AR BEEBRRGOESD - &

— Material for interior decoration of
cruising boats; non-flammable smooth
seat pad; and Civil-work fabric

— R BERE AR WKL B A Re i I A
2 RETH

The Group has successfully developed noise-absorbing and heat-insulating nonwoven
fabric and has distributed the products in the second half of 2010.
REBEKIAZERIT RBRESM  WER S —SFTFFOHEZER °

The Group is conducting research and development in smooth and filtering materials
used in high-speed trains with universities in the PRC.

AEE B3R IE 8P B 2 PR 23 1T AR B B AB OB R BB MRt O BT 3

The Group is conducting research on the textures of the material for interior
decoration of cruising boats, non-flammable smooth seat pad and Civil-work fabric.
In addition, the Group is also performing market research on the demand of the
material for interior decoration of cruising boats, non-flammable smooth seat pad
and Civil-work fabric.

RNEB R AR BN - B A BRI E K + TR B ETTIE © 1t
G - REEIRIER AR BEAE A BRI « B AR BT RIAL B R + T AR HETT T35 55 KR

K

The Group also conducted research and development on other new nonwoven fabric
products.

AEEFETH R MAEE MBS TER

FEAERNMEEBRAR —F——FFR "



Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FRBEREERNT WA (F

USE OF PROCEEDS

On 29 September 2010, shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange by way of placing. The net proceeds from the placing was
approximately HK$30.6 million, which was different from the estimated
net proceeds of approximately HK$34.4 million (estimated on the
assumption that the placing price would be the mid-point of the stated
range as stated in the Prospectus). The Group originally intends to adjust
the use of proceeds in the same manner and in the same proportion as
shown in the Prospectus. On 22 November 2011, the Board resolved
to change the proposed use of net proceeds originally allocated for
(i) the acquisition of land and construction of new factory premises to
(i) the expansion of production capacity which mainly involved in the
acquisition of additional plants and equipments; and (iii) the research and
development of new products, as follows:

FREREAR

RZZ—FFNA_TNIB  AREAROARES
ARBERZPT E o BLEFSSURFRAR30.68E
B HBRRMAE SR FREA344ABEET
(A NRREEEBERRBREZABEE 2P H
B) - AEBEIRBRERMR ZER T AR
BSPEAR R _FT——F+—A=-+—_H "
BEESRRBAEREFEHRAEEG KEL
NEGEHME R ERAATRE)EZAKBEM
B M sk s AR FEEE B ¢ R (iii) BT b R PR BT EE

Adjusted use of
proceeds in the

same manner Revised
and proportion allocation of
as stated in use of
the Prospectus proceeds
BREERER
FrRZEER BT 2
RLpIFAZEZ Frf8sI8
FreFIEAZ RS
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
(i)  Expansion of production capacity (i) EFRERE 8,733 24,801
(i) Acquisition of land and construction of new (i)  UWBE 1 b & B T =
factory premises 19,401 -
(i)  Development of new products (i) FEHMESR 2,467 5,800
30,601 30,601

During the period from 13 September 2010, being the latest practicable
date prior to issue of the Prospectus to 31 December 2011, the Group has
applied the net proceeds as follows:

IEIEERE
FEHER

Expansion of production capacity
Development of new products

B-Z-ZFAAT=A(AITIEERERZMNRKRE
ERATAS)E T ——F+ - A=+—BHH
N - ARECBASRIBFRENTRE

Revised
allocation of Actual use of
use of proceeds proceeds
RIEFT 2 PRSI
FRiSFIE AR D B BRAR
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
24,801 8,733
5,800 5,800
30,601 14,533

The balance of the unused proceeds was placed as bank deposits as at 31
December 2011 and temporarily used as general working capital in order
to increase the efficiency of the use of proceeds.
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Except the Company issued 40,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each at the
placing price of HK$0.25 each on 3 November 2011, there has been no
material change in the capital structure of the Group since 31 December
2010.

Majority of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. At 31 December 2011, the Group
had no significant exposure under foreign exchange contracts, interest,
currency swaps or other financial derivatives.

At 31 December 2011, there was no significant investment held by the
Group (2010: Nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2011, there were no material
acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies by the
Group.

At 31 December 2011, the Group secured its bank loans by buildings
with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB7.8 million (2010: RMB7.8
million) and prepaid land lease payments with a carrying amounts of
approximately RMB3.1 million (2010: RMB3.1 million). The carrying
amounts of motor vehicles held by the Group under finance lease
amounted to approximately RMBO0.8 million (2010: RMB0.9 million).

Approximately RMB7.4 million (2010: RMB6.4 million) of trade receivables
were pledged to a bank to secure short-term bank loans.

At 31 December 2011, the Group employed a total of 208 employees
(2010: 211). The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Board on the basis of their experience, qualifications and
competence. Other employees’ benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident funds, and social insurance together with housing
provident funds to its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

A remuneration committee was set up for, inter alia, reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all directors and senior
management of the Group.
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On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to all of our customers, business partners and
investors for their support and trust towards the Group. Further, | would
like to express my sincere thanks to our Directors and employees for their
dedications and contributions to the Group.

By order of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 2 March 2012
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Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, aged 49, is the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and one of the founders of the Group.
He was appointed as an executive Director on 12 April 2010. He has over
10 years of experience in the nonwoven textile industry. He is responsible
for formulating the Group’s corporate strategy, overseeing its production
operations and the overall steering of the Group’s strategic development.

Mr. Zhuang graduated from Xiamen Fisheries College in 1981 and was
approved as a qualified engineer by the Intermediate Level Adjudication
Committee of Xiamen City Marine Engineering Department in 1990. From
1997 to 2001, Mr. Zhuang was the director and the general manager
of Xiamen Marine Industries (Group) Co., Limited, a PRC incorporated
company and was previously listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr.
Zhuang is the spouse of Ms. Ruan Bixia, an executive Director.

Mr. Pak Ping, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director on 12
April 2010. Mr. Pak has over 16 years of experience in the nonwoven
material and carpet industry. He is primarily responsible for coordinating
the marketing activities and formulating product development strategies
for the Group.

With extensive experience and profound knowledge on the nonwoven
product industry, Mr. Pak co-founded the Group with Mr. Zhuang Yuejin
in 2003.

Ms. Ruan Bixia, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director on
12 April 2010. She has over 9 years of experience in the nonwoven
textile industry. She is primarily responsible for supervising the delivery of
customer service and the Group'’s expansion within the PRC market.

Ms. Ruan graduated from Fujian Chemical Industry School in July 1989.
Ms. Ruan is the spouse of Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, an executive Director.

Mr. Wong Ho Yin, aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director
and company secretary on 30 June 2011. He graduated from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Master of Corporate Governance Degree and
a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of both the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the financial controller and
company secretary of a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, namely Ching Hing (Holdings) Limited (currently known as
Bao Yuan Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 692), from September 2006 to
October 2010. He has extensive experience in accounting and corporate
compliance.
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Dr. Tang Yanfei, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 12 April 2010. Dr. Tang graduated from Wuhan
University of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1984.
He further obtained from Wuhan University a master’'s degree and a
doctor’s degree in Economics respectively in 1987 and 1997.

Dr. Tang was appointed as the president assistant and the manager
of the development department of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town
Holding Company (Stock Code: 000069), a PRC incorporated company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, in 1998. From 2003 to 2004,
he took office as the president assistant and the general manager of
the investment management department of China Oceanwide Holdings
Group, a PRC incorporated company and the holding company of
Oceanwide Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 000046), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Dr. Tang is currently a professor
and the dean of the Faulty of Business Administration of Haikou College
of Economics.

Mr. Mak Wai Ho, aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 9 September 2011. He was graduated from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a Bachelor degree
in Business Administration in Finance. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is a practising certified public accountant and has more
than 15 years of experience in finance, accounting and auditing.

Mr. Mak was the company secretary and financial controller of Kong Sun
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 295), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, from September 2005 to November 2009.

Mr. Feng Xueben, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 12 April 2010. Mr. Feng was approved as a qualified
engineer specialising in textile machinery design by the Textile Industry
Department of the People’s Republic of China in 1989. Since 2003, Mr.
Feng has been the chief engineer of Wuxi Jiayuan Nonwovens Technology
Research Institute.

Mr. Feng was an independent director of Fujian Nanfang Textile Co., Ltd
(Stock Code: 600483), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
from June 2002 to May 2008. He was the deputy director of Nonwoven
Textile Machinery Professional Committee of China Textile Machinery
Association from 2007 to 2009. Since February 2010, Mr. Feng has also
been an independent non-executive director of Costin New Materials
Group Limited (Stock Code: 2228), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chen Xianping, aged 42, was appointed as a director of Joystar
(Wuxi) Automotive Interior Decoration Co., Ltd. (“Joystar Wuxi”) on
March 2010. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2005 and has since then
served as the deputy general manager of Joystar Wuxi. He is responsible
for overseeing the purchasing department and managing the production
workshops of the Group. He was previously an executive Director of the
Company from 12 April 2010 to 2 December 2011.

Mr. Chen graduated from Wuhan Institute of Textile Engineering (currently
known as Wuhan Textile University) in 1994, specialising in textile
engineering. Mr. Chen has over 16 years of experience in the industrial use
textile industry. Mr. Chen is the spouse of Ms. Wang Haiying, the deputy
general manager of Joystar Wuxi.

Ms. Wang Haiying, aged 42, has been the deputy general manager of
Joystar Wuxi since 2007 and is responsible for overseeing the production
process and quality control of the Group.

Ms. Wang graduated from Wuhan Institute of Textile Engineering
(currently known as Wuhan Textile University) in 1994, specialising in
textile engineering. She has extensive experience in the industrial use
textile industry and joined the Group as the head of quality control
department of Joystar Wuxi in 2004. Ms. Wang is the spouse of Mr. Chen
Xianping, a director and the deputy general manager of Joystar Wuxi.

Mr. Han Zhiqing, aged 47, has been the deputy general manager
of Joystar Wuxi since 2004 and is responsible for coordinating the
technological development and mechanical support for the Group.

Mr. Han graduated from Shanghai Wool and Jute Textile Company
Workers' University in 1982, specialising in woolen textile. Mr. Han has
over 10 years of extensive experience in the industrial use textile industry.

Ms. Wu Danping, aged 37, is the manager of the accounting department
of Joystar Wuxi. Ms. Wu is responsible for the financial reporting and the
management of the accounting and finance department of Joystar Wuxi.

Ms. Wu obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional issued by the
Jiangsu Province Department of Finance and the Qualification Certificate
of Specialty and Technology with specialty in accountancy conferred by
the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in 1997 and 2006 respectively.

In 2008, Ms. Wu completed a online diploma programme in accountancy
from China Agricultural University. She has 15 years of experience in
financial accounting and reporting.
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Mr. Wu Ganghua, aged 41, is the manager of the sales and marketing  REIZFELXLE - 4155 0 AR EEHHEE MIHEEILEIE -
department of Joystar Wuxi. He is responsible for the sales and marketing &8 E15EEFHEE L TISHREEE -
operation of Joystar Wuxi.

In 1990, Mr. Wu graduated from Jiangsu Province Wuxi City College W —HNZF - RESEEN TarE B MEmMEE
of Mechanical Manufacturing (currently known as Wuxi Institute of & (IRFBEGFEEERMERT) « B — QN NFEE
Technology). He was qualified as an assistant engineer in mechanical  $3H BB E TIESEE/MER R AW ELER)IE T2
manufacturing by Wuxi City Professional Title Reform Committee in 1996.  Bf e R— RN NF - RAELESHE RSB A2 EE
Mr. Wu further obtained a graduation certificate from Nanjing Normal £ - REAR ST INFNBEIEEEL -

University in 1999. Mr. Wu joined Joystar Wuxi in 2004.
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Pursuant to the Rule 18.44 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”), the Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2011. This report highlights the
key corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on principles,
code provisions and certain recommended best practices as set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. Except for the deviation from Code provision A.2.1 as
described under the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” on
page 22 of this report, the Company has complied with the Code for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with the code of conduct and
the required standard of dealings concerning securities transactions by the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2011.

At 31 December 2011, the Board comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin (Chairman)
Mr. Pak Ping

Ms. Ruan Bixia

Mr. Wong Ho Yin

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho

Dr. Tang Yanfei

Mr. Feng Xueben
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The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The
biographical details of the Directors and the relationship among the
members of the Board are set out in the “Biographical Information of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 18 of this report.

Generally, the responsibilities of the Board include:
o Formulation of overall strategic development of the Group;

o Monitoring the financial performance and internal control of the
Group’s business operations;

o Material acquisitions, investments, disposal of assets or any
significant capital expenditure;

o Appointment, removal or reappointment of Board members and
auditors;

e Remuneration of Directors;
o Communications with key stakeholders;
o Recommendation and declaration of any interim and final dividends

Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and executing
the strategies adopted by the Board. The Board delegates day-to-
day activities to the management with department heads responsible
for different aspects of the business. The non-executive Directors
serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group through
their contributions in board meetings. They are also serving on audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.

During the year, the Board complies at all times with the requirement
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors and at least one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

FEGNEBTE  SEEEHEBRHNTER
B ETHOERERABERE, REAEEET
B EPIRG - BEY BEHEREFSRE 2R
MBERR A RS SEESISEM ERRERE
BENBEER ] -

—RiME  EFFZRERR
o BIEAREEZBEREER

o EFEAREXBEKLENTHRERNIET

o BAYE KE -  HEEEIEMEARNEARHR
¥

o ZHfE BERENMEREEFINE LA

o EFME:
o HEIBRGRHEEABRE:
. R E IR HROREIR R

HITEFREKEARERATESEMRMNZER
B - EEFHAREEDERTERRE KPR
BERETRBENER - FNTERRB2HERE
€% BTHARENRRE  RALRBREEELS
STHE ARG - RENSBERZES  FMEZE
ENEEERBENE -

RER BEFRZETAER MR ZHEER
E o RERL=REFMTEERETEL B
BEEEXER GBS LABRMBEENE
& o ARAERFAIZER LR RIES 09 REEESE
TIFMITEEREBIMER Z FERER - ARAR
A RERBUIFRITEESEBYAL -



The Board normally has four regular meetings a year at quarterly
interval and meets as and when required to discuss the overall business,
development strategy, operations and financial reporting of the Company.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s articles
of association. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the four regular meetings held during the year:

No. of
Members Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 4/4
Mr. Pak Ping 4/4
Ms. Ruan Bixia 4/4
Mr. Wong Ho Yin (appointed on 30 June 2011) 2/4
Mr. Chen Xianping (resigned on 2 December 2011) 4/4
Ms. Wong Hsiao Hung (removed on 10 October 2011) 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho (appointed on 9 September 2011) 1/4
Dr. Tang Yanfei 4/4
Mr. Feng Xueben 4/4
Mr. Law Tze Lun (resigned on 9 September 2011) 3/4

The Directors will receive details of agenda and minutes of committee
meetings in advance of and after each Board meeting respectively. The
company secretary will distribute relevant documents to the Directors in
a timely manner to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings. All Directors have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are complied with, and
in consultation with the compliance officer of the Company, advising the
Board on compliance matters.

In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the Directors
to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense in discharging their duties to the Company.
Moreover, the company secretary prepares minutes of the Board meetings
and keeps records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all
Board meetings. The company secretary also keeps the minutes of the
Board meetings, which are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.
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Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. Such deviation from Code provision A.2.1 is deemed
appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to have one single
person as the Chairman of the Company as well as to discharge the
executive functions of a chief executive officer, and it provides the Group
with strong and consistent leadership in the development and execution
of long term business strategies. The Board believes that the balance
of power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the
Board which comprises highly experienced individuals. There are three
independent non-executive Directors on the Board. All of them possess
adequate independence and therefore the Board considers the Company
has achieved balance and provided sufficient protection of its interests.

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years. A Director appointed since the
most recent annual general meeting shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. The
independent non-executive Directors were appointed at specific terms for
one year.

According to paragraph A.4.4 of the Code, the listed issuers are
recommended to set up a nomination committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive Directors.

The Company established a nomination committee on 13 September
2010 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board. The
nomination committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhuang Yuejin (chairman of the nomination committee), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho and Mr.
Feng Xueben.
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During the year, three meetings were held by the nomination committee
to discuss the nomination of Directors. The following table shows the
attendance of individual members at the meetings held during the year:

No. of
Members Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 3/3
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Feng Xueben 2/3
Mr. Mak Wai Ho (appointed on 9 September 2011) 0/3
Mr. Law Tze Lun (resigned on 9 September 2011) 3/3

The Company established a remuneration committee on 13 September
2010 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code provision
B.1.1. The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
reviewing the terms of remuneration packages, determining the award
of bonuses and considering the grant of options under the share option
scheme of the Company. The remuneration committee comprises one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhuang Yuejin and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho (chairman of the
remuneration committee) and Dr. Tang Yanfei.

During the year, four meetings were held by the remuneration committee
to discuss the remuneration policy of the Group and determine the
remuneration of new Directors. The following table shows the attendance
of individual members at the meetings held during the year:

No. of
Members Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Tang Yanfei 3/4
Mr. Mak Wai Ho (appointed on 9 September 2011) 0/4
Mr. Law Tze Lun (resigned on 9 September 2011) 4/4
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The Company established an audit committee on 13 September 2010
in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. Written
terms of reference in compliance with Code provision C.3.3 have been
adopted. The primary duties of the audit committee are, among other
things, to review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho (chairman
of the audit committee), Mr. Feng Xueben and Dr. Tang Yanfei.

During the year, five meetings were held by the audit committee. The
following table shows the attendance of individual members at the
meetings held during the year:

No. of
Members Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho (appointed on 9 September 2011) 2/5
Dr. Tang Yanfei 5/5
Mr. Feng Xueben 4/5
Mr. Law Tze Lun (resigned on 9 September 2011) 3/5

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the quarterly, interim and
annual reports as well as result announcements before submission to
the Board. The audit committee focuses not only on the impact of the
changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance
with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in review of the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual
reports as well as result announcements.

The audit committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditors and also reviews any non-audit functions performed
by the external auditors for the Group, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2011, the remuneration payable
and paid to the auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng in respect of audit
services amounted to HK$580,000.
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The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These
include the publication of annual, interim and quarterly reports,
notices, announcements and circulars, the Company’s website at
www.joystar.com.hk and meetings with investors and analysts.

The Company encourages all shareholders to attend the annual general
meetings to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and goals. It provides
an opportunity for direct communication between the Board and
its shareholders. The chairman of the meeting explains the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and then answers any questions from
shareholders. The poll results are published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an adequate and
effective internal control system to safeguard the Company’s assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, and to protect the interests of
shareholders of the Company.

The audit committee assumes the overall responsibility for reviewing the
adequacy and integrity of the Group's internal control system.

During the year, the Board has discussed and reviewed the relevant
proposals made by senior management in order to ensure an adequate
and effective system of internal control. The Board, through the audit
committee, has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2011, which covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls functions.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The auditor of the Company is responsible to
form an independent opinion based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely to the
shareholders of the Company.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
(the “Year”).

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and trading of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration parts
and infrastructure.

The Group's results for the Year are set out in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
37 and 38.

The state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at 31 December
2011 are set out in the statement of financial position on pages 39 to 41.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 22 to the
financial statements.

A summary of financial results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Summary of Financial
Information” on page 112 in this report.

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The movements in the reserves of
the Company during the Year are set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserve available for distribution to
owners of the Company comprising share premium account amounted to
approximately RMB 10,328,000 (2010: RMB9,850,000).

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Year.
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Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 19 to the financial statements.

Donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to RMB100,000.

In the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 64.4% (2010: 60.5%) of the total sales for
the Year and sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately
19.4% (2010: 17%) of total sales. Purchases from the Group'’s five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 67.1% (2010: 67.6%)
of the total purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 22.8% (2010: 27.0%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers during the Year .

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin

Mr. Pak Ping

Ms. Ruan Bixia

Mr. Wong Ho Yin

Mr. Chen Xianping

Ms. Wong Hsiao Hung

— appointed on 30 June 2011
—resigned on 2 December 2011
—removed on 10 October 2011

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Mak Wai Ho — appointed on 9 September 2011
Dr. Tang Yanfei
Mr. Feng Xueben
Mr. Law Tze Lun — resigned on 9 September 2011

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Zhuang Yuejin, Mr. Pak Ping and Mr. Feng Xueben shall retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and pursuant to Article 83(3)
of the Company's articles of association, Mr. Wong Ho Yin and Mr. Mak
Wai Ho shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All the
retiring Directors are eligible for re-elections.
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Biographical information of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 15 to 18 of this report.

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Board on the basis of their experience, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are reviewed by the
remuneration committee of the Company and approved by the Board,
having regard to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility,
workload and the time devoted to the Group; the Company’s operating
results and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 13
September 2010 to which the Directors and eligible employees, among
others are entitled to participate in. The Company operates the Scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Details of the
Scheme are set out in paragraph “Share Option Scheme” below.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 15 and 16 to the financial
statements.

So far as known to the Directors, at 31 December 2011, the interests and
short positions of the directors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO) or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise required to be notified to
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

ESERE(A

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Capacity and nature

of interest

SO RERNEE
Director
BF
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin Beneficial owner
SR S EmlEBA
Ms. Ruan Bixia* Interest of spouse
FrE gz L~ it £
Mr. Pak Ping Beneficial owner
B EE BB A

Mgz SRR - SIRBRIFER WA RIES5.46E5.67
GAMEARE R rEER FORET

RARBRG 2HR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
EEARREZ
BHBDE

Number of issued
ordinary

shares held
e 817
=EREE

79,860,000 33.28%
79,860,000 33.28%
14,910,000 6.21%

* Ms. Ruan Bixia is the spouse of Mr. Zhuang Yuejin and is deemed to be
interested in all shares held by Zhuang Yuejin under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors or
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or of any other body corporate granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors,
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire such
rights in the Company or any body corporate.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

ESERE(A

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests Or Short Positions in the Shares Or
Underlying Shares of the Company

At 31 December 2011, so far as known to the Directors, the persons (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company), who had, or was
deemed to have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company in accordance with the
provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
recorded in the register maintained by the Company, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Capacity and nature

of interest

SR EHENEE

Beneficial owner
BEmEA A

Ms. Wong Hsiao Hung
U

FERRREMALTREQT 2 KRHHE
BEROPHEEIAE

R-F——F+_A=1+—8 REFHMA UTA
T(RRREEREHTRABRIN RN HAER
DR BEA HIRE AR B REE S R ERIIEXVEEZ
F2REIDWAMARBRE - RIBBEFEFRPE K
PIFE336MGARBIAFERERMHERIAR

RARBRD ZHFR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
EEARREZ
BHED L

Number of issued
ordinary

shares held
Fifse 817
=EREE

40,019,000 16.67%

Save as disclosed above and under the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interest in Securities, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
on page 29 of this report, at 31 December 2011, the Directors of the
Company were not aware of any persons who had, or was deemed
to have, interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company in accordance with the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year.

Director’s Interest in Competing Interests

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors,
the controlling shareholder and their respective associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflict of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group during the Year.
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Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

At 31 December 2011, except for the agreement entered into between
the Company and Tanrich Capital Limited, the Company’s compliance
adviser on 19 August 2011, neither the Company’s compliance adviser
nor its directors, employees or associates had any interest in the share
capital of the Company or any member of the Group (including options
or rights to subscribe for such securities) as notified by the Company’s
compliance adviser.

Save as disclosed in section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in
Securities, Underlying Shares and Debentures” on page 29 of this report,
at no time during the Year was the Company, or its subsidiaries, or its
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the sufficient
public float under the GEM Listing Rules.

During the Year, except for those disclosed in Note 41 to the financial
statements, the Group had no transactions with its related parties.

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2011 are set
out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in
Note 40 to the financial statements.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.
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The Company adopted the Scheme on 13 September 2010 which will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the effective date of the
Scheme and will expire on 29 September 2020.

Under the Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant options to
(i) any employee of any member of the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”); (ii)
any executive and non-executive Directors of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier and customer of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any shareholder of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
or proposed to be issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; or (vi) any adviser or consultant of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity to subscribe for the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company on the date of adopting the Scheme. The limit
may be refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must not be
in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting. However,
the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last
date of such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company has been obtained in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the option
to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be determined by
the Directors. The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price per share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the grant of
the options; (ii) the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the options; or (iii) the nominal value of
a share.

During the Year, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or
lapsed and there is no outstanding share option under the Scheme.
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with the code of conduct and
the required standard of dealings concerning securities transactions by the
Directors during the Year.

Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the Group
are set out in Note 44 to the financial statements.

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng, will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin

Director

Hong Kong, 2 March 2012
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B #F & &% F % 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
37 to 111, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

and the consolidated

consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2010 were audited by another auditors who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 18 March 2011.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 2 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE T ——Ff A=+ HIFE

20M 2010
—2——-F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBT T

Revenue WA 9 156,476 123,090
Cost of sales SHERA (114,470) (93,774)
Gross profit EF 42,006 29,316
Other income Eug A 10 998 7,180
Selling and distribution costs SHE R A (7,749) (6,656)
Administrative expenses TE RS (11,290) (9,661)
Profit from operations SRR 11 23,965 20,179
Finance costs BE R A 12 (1,490) (1,699)
Profit before tax R A1 5 R 22,475 18,480
Income tax expense st 13 (3,624) (3,983)

Profit for the year attributable to KAREE AELFERR
the owners of the Company 18,851 14,497
RMB RMB
AR AR

Earnings per share sRER

Basic HAK 14 9.1 cents% 8.9 centsy
Diluted i 14 9.1 cents 8.9 centsyy

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SLEEHEWNER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE T ——Ff A=+ HIFE

20M 2010
= —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBT T

Profit for the year FERF 18,851 14,497
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, Ht2mE(E8E), W -

net of income tax: R AEFi% :
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations BERINERS ZEN =5 (33) 43
Total comprehensive income for the year RAREEAEBLEEE

attributable to the owners of the Company 2HEW AT 18,818 14,540
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BN R

At 31 December 2011
R-—FE——FF=H=1—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Loan receivables

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Prepaid land lease payments

Inventories

Trade receivables

Note receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Amount due from a director

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
the owners of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

aE

FRBEE

E R ]
BN LA E IR
e E K
ERBIREE

RBEE

BN LA ERIA

&

B SN IR

MR
BRFOR - 2 REMRKFIR
e —BEFHIA

B RIRTTER

EERR

Rz
EAREEABEERRFE

19
20
21
35

20
23
24

25
26
27

28
29

2011
—E——F

RMB’000
AR®T R

2010
—E—TF
RMB’000
ARETTT

42,253 32,838
2,990 3,063

- 118

854 763
46,097 36,782
73 73
13,806 9,937
60,109 46,966
3,400 6,040
15,258 16,818
- 38
16,387 18,990
109,033 98,862
155,130 135,644
20,552 17,275
92,022 69,075
112,574 86,350
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e MR R (E

At 31 December 2011
R-—FE——FF=H=1—H

LIABILITIES =N

Current liabilities ik =R

Trade payables E ZENFIE 30
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R H R FIR 31
Amounts due to shareholders FE AR SRR IE 32
Borrowings &R 33
Finance lease payables FEARERERIA 34
Tax payable JERTTRIE

Non-current liabilities FREAE

Finance lease payables AR ERERIA 34
Total liabilities BERE

Total equity and liabilities ERRkEEEE

Net current assets REBEESRE

Total assets less current liabilities wEERABAR

2011
—E——F

RMB'000
AR®T R

2010

T —TF
RMB’000
ARET T

10,374 15,472
4,950 9,645

- 22
25,000 21,848
209 234
2,023 1,864
42,556 49,085
- 209

- 209
42,556 49,294
155,130 135,644
66,477 49,777
112,574 86,559

Approved by the Board of Directors on 2 March 2012 and signed on its behalf by:
MRECE—"F=A - HHEBEESHETHR FIIALTRERES

Zhuang Yuejin
HRE

Director

BZE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

BrEEAR R

At 31 December 2011
R-—FE——FF=H=1—H

2011
—_E——5F
RMB’000
AR®T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARRIRE 22 17,872 17,553
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FERFERIE « 124 N E b fE UK 25 82 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NG e 22 23,492 32,605
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTH 27 5,874 452
29,448 33,057
Total assets EEHAE 47,320 50,610
EQUITY Em
Capital and reserves attributable to the RABEEABRLERE #E
owners of the Company
Share capital [N 28 20,552 17,275
Reserves & 29 26,108 26,553
Total equity ERBE 46,660 43,828
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables EETE R R HE AN ZIE 31 350 507
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT B A B RIE 22 310 6,275
Total liabilities BEH8E 660 6,782
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 47,320 50,610
Net current assets REEEFEE 28,788 26,275
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERARBERE 46,660 43,828

Approved by the Board of Directors on 2 March 2012 and signed on its behalf by:
REIBE-——F=A-HAEFSIELA TIALTRERES -

Zhuang Yuejin Pak Ping
HRE A¥

Director Director
BF BF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MeEmBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE T ——Ff A=+ HIFE

At 1 January 2010

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of income tax:
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Total comprehensive income for the year

Capitalisation of the shareholders' loans
Reorganisation

Capitalisation issue

Issue of shares on placement

Share issue expenses

Transfer to statutory reserve

At 31 December 2010 and
1 January 2011

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year,
net of income tax:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

Issue of shares on placement
Share issue expenses
Transfer to statutory reserve

At 31 December 2011

FEAEMN

FEAMZERE 1k
PR -

BEBNERL
3%

FERENGRE

BREFEA
4
BREET
RERRTRY
T
BRTATHE

ERAEMN

FREAMZARE -
TRRASHE -

BHEBNEHL
ERER

FEEAE(ER)/
Wa e

REBRTRN
T
BRTATHE

R=B--§
t-A=t-H

Foreign
Share currency
Share premium Merger  translation  Statutory Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve profits equity
Kt e
e HER  AHRE  RERE  EERE  REER  ERER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR AR%TR ARET:R
1,064 - - 2,647 3,018 24,313 31,042
- - - - - 14,497 14,497
- - - 43 - - 43
- - - 43 - 14,497 14,540
149 5112 - - - - 5,261
(880) (5112) 5992 - - - -
12,624 (12,624) - - - - -
4318 35,835 - - - - 40,153
- (4,646) - - - - (4,646)
- - - - 2,446 (2,446) -
17,275 18,565 5992 2,690 5,464 36,364 86,350
- - - - - 18,851 18,851
- - - (33) - - (33)
- - - (33 - 18,851 18,818
3277 4915 - - - - 8,192
- (786) - - - - (786)
- - - - 2217 (2,217) -
20,552 22,694 5992 2,657 7,681 52,998 112,574
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE T ——Ff A=+ HIFE

2011 2010
—g—-5&  —2-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHELENRESRE
Profit before tax B0 A1 Vg ) 22,475 18,480
Adjustments for: AT EIEER R
Interest expenses FEFEZ 1,464 1,235
Finance lease charges BEHEER 26 43
Interest income FEYA (24) (25)
Net foreign exchange loss HNE B 1R FEE - 421
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables FE 5 RN BEERAREEE 246 -
Inventories written off FEMH 294 175
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENREITE 3,415 3,153
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEA 12 T B RUIE 73 73
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  MENMRIEETE 47 315
Operating profit before working capital changes BIEESFEA LR 28,016 23,870
Increase in inventories FEEM (4,163) (3,868)
Increase in trade receivables B S FEWGRIEE I (13,389) (12,310)
Decrease/(increase) in note receivables FEM =B D (35 0) 2,640 (5,036)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TENFE -« Re R EMEIREIE
deposits and other receivables w, () 6,323 (15,534)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B 5 RSB CRAD), /180 (5,098) 827
Decrease in accruals and other payables FEEH B R R E A R RIER A (4,695) (1,215)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations KBS (FTR)IRe 35 9,634 (13,266)
Interest paid EASHLE (1,464) (1,235)
Finance lease charges paid BENREHEER (26) 43)
Tax refund B 341 -
Income taxes paid EATFTIEH (3,897) (3,673)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities &2 EBNATS, (T )IR & 548 4,588 (18,217)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHELENRESRE
Repayment of loan receivables BEERER 118 62
Interest received ERE 24 25
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEMEE (1,912) (2,495)
Addition of construction in progress TEEIEARE (15,751) (3,568)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - WE RBRESHRIE
plant and equipment 23 365
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBTAR S FE (17,498) (5,611)

REAER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

REBRERER(F

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE—F——F=F=+—HIFEF

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short-term bank loans

Repayment of short-term bank loans

Repayment of finance lease payables

Repayment of amounts due to related companies
Repayment of amount due from/(to) a director
Repayment of amounts due to shareholders
Repayment of loans from a related party
(Repayment to)/advances from an unrelated party
Proceeds from issue of shares

Share issuing expenses

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

RETBELENRESRE
EERITE RS KA
EERHRITER
BEENRERENRIE
BEEMNEEQTNIEA
EEEY () —BESERK
BB EMNRRRIA
EBE—AEESTER
m—RIERET (BR), B
BITIRM TS R0R

[ 1D 81T

BB EEGIR e EE

RERREEENRDFE

RENNRERREEEY

SMEER BB E

REANRERFSEEY

RERREEENERTNT

Re RRITH

2011 2010
= —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
30,000 21,000
(26,000) (19,000)
(234) (217)
= (3,537)
38 (996)
(22) (12,368)
= (100)

(848) 848

8,192 40,153
(786) (4,646)
10,340 21,137
(2,570) (2,691)
18,990 22,068
(33) (387)

16,387 18,990
16,387 18,990

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
o E—— At A= —HIFE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 9
December 2009 with limited liability. The registered office of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of
the Group's principal place of business is located at No. 28 Xinfeng
Road, Xinfeng Industrial Park, Fanggian Town, New District, Wuxi
City, Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration
parts and infrastructure.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except
when otherwise indicated.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 29 September 2010 (the “Listing Date”).

Pursuant to the Group of Reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) for
the purpose of listing (the “Listing”) the Company’s ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange, the Company and Joystar (BVI) Automotive
Interior Decoration Limited were incorporated and interspersed
between Joystar International Investment Limited and the owners of
Joystar International Investment Limited; and became the holding
company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group and the
intermediate holding company of Joystar International Investment
Limited respectively. Further details of the Reorganisation are also
set out in the paragraphs headed “Corporate Reorganisation/
Development” of the section headed “History and Development”
to the prospectus of the Company dated 21 September 2010 (the
“Prospectus”) in connection with the Listing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+ =1 ALFE

As the Reorganisation only involved inserting new holding entities
at the top of an existing group and has not resulted in any change
of economic substances, the financial statements of the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 have been
presented as a continuation of the existing group based on the
principles and procedures of merger accounting in accordance with
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"). Accordingly, the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows are prepared as if the current
group structure had been in existence rather than from date of
incorporation of the Company.

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs")
issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its operations and effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+ =1 ALFE

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) simplifies the definition of “related party”
and removes inconsistencies, which emphasises a symmetrical view
of related party transactions. The revised standard also provides
limited relief from disclosure of information by government-related
entities in respect of transactions with the government to which the
group is related, or transactions with other entities related to the
same government. These amendments have had no material impact
on the Group's financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard introduces a
number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
7, Financial instruments: Disclosures. These amendments do not
have any material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurements of the amounts recognised in the financial statements
in the current and previous periods.

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on the
results and the financial position of the Group for the current or
prior accounting period. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is
required.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+ =1 ALFE

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income3

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets?

Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilitiess

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine4

Disclosure — Transfer of Financial Assets’

Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities*

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements*

Joint Arrangements?
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities4

Fair Value Measurement4

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets and will be
effective from 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
The standard requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows and
(i) have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect
the classification and measurement of the Group'’s financial assets.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates to
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the presentation of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.
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HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2013 and that the application of the new
standard may have a significant impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Groups’ financial assets. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 titled Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets increase the disclosure requirements for transactions
involving transfers of financial assets. These amendments are
intended to provide greater transparency around risk exposures
when a financial asset is transferred but the transferor retains some
level of continuing exposure in the asset. The amendments also
require disclosures where transfers of financial assets are not evenly
distributed throughout the period.

The directors do not anticipate that these amendments to HKFRS 7
will have a significant effect on the Group’s disclosures regarding
transfers of trade receivables previously affected. However, if the
Group enters into other types of transfers of financial assets in the
future, disclosures regarding those transfers may be affected.

For other new and revised HKFRSs which are issued but not yet
effective, the Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact upon initial application. The Group is not yet in a position to
state whether they would have a significant impact on the Group's
results of operations and financial position.
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The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (the “Interpretations”) issued by the HKICPA and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, in addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special purpose
entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests have a
deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.
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Basis of consolidation (continued)
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed
of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Merger accounting for common control combination
The financial statement incorporates the financial statement items
of the combining entities or business in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.
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Merger accounting for common control combination
(continued)

The net assets of the combining entities or business are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling party’s
perspective. No amount is recognised with respect to goodwill or
any excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over its cost
at the time of common control combination, to the extent of the
contribution of the controlling party’s interest.

The combined statement of comprehensive income include the
results of each of the combining entities or business from the
earliest date presented or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under common control, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of common control combination.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the combining entities or business are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated but considered as an
impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
combining entities or business have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting power; has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies; to appoint or
remove the majority of the members of the board of directors; or to
cast majority of votes at the meetings of the board of directors.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less any impairment loss. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyers,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
effective interest method.

Technical support income is recognised when the technical support
services are rendered.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to the consolidated income statement.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as
an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.
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Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment, using the straight line method, over their estimated useful
lives. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Building 30 years
Plant and machinery 12 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted,
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements under
construction and plant and machinery pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the
relevant asset are available for use.

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is determined
as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less all estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of
the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and recognised
in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’ recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the
carrying amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment of assets (other than goodwill, intangible
assets with indefinite lives)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.
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Impairment of assets (other than goodwill, intangible
assets with indefinite lives) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liabilities method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of the
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to consolidated income statement
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly or equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the entity
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
All regular purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category of financial assets are set out below.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.
An impairment loss is recognised in consolidated income statement
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses were recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment losses
reversed do not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment losses not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in
consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in consolidated
income statement.

Foreign currencies

i Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
companies now comprising the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the company operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s presentation currency and the
functional currency of the principal operating subsidiary of the
Group. The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars. The directors consider that choosing Renminbi as the
presentation currency best suits the needs of the shareholders
and investors.
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Financial currencies (Continued)

ii.

fil.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities are reported as part of their fair value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the companies now
comprising the Group (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(@ Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates; and

(c)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation

of the net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings

and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such

investments, are taken to owners’ equity. When a foreign operation

is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are

recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a

foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.
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Current assets and liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve months
of the end of the reporting period or in the normal course of the
Group's operating cycle. Current liabilities are expected to be settled
within twelve months of the end of the reporting period or in the
normal course of the Group's operating cycle.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. A contingent asset is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations of the PRC, the
Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required
to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all its
PRC employees at certain percentages of the basic salaries
predetermined by the local governments. The state-sponsored
retirement plan is responsible for the entire retirement benefit
obligations payable to retired employees and the Group
has no further obligations for the actual retirement benefit
payments or other post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions.
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Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment
or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy
by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type of class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is

considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

() it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 7 to 90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
equity. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(1) A person or entity that is preparing the financial statements of

the Group;

(2) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.
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Related parties (Continued)

(3) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a

group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,

the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (2).

(vii) A person identified in (2)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when
there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related

parties.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade receivables based on
assessments of the recoverability of the trade receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairment arises where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgment and
estimates. Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the reporting period in
which such estimate has been changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.
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Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax
losses are recognised when management considers to be probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable, an assessment of the carrying amount
of that asset will be performed. Triggering events include significant
adverse changes in the market value of an asset, changes in the
business or regulatory environment, or certain legal events. The
interpretation of such events requires judgment from management
with respect to whether such an event has occurred. Upon the
occurrence of triggering events, the carrying amounts of non-current
assets are reviewed to assess whether their recoverable amounts
have declined below their carrying amounts. The recoverable amount
is the present value of estimated net future cash flows which the
Group expects to generate from the future use of the asset, plus the
assets residual value on disposal. Where the recoverable amount of
non-current assets is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is
recognised to write the assets down to its recoverable amount.
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6. Financial Instruments

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets: ERMEE !
Loans and receivables B kW IE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BIEBReRREEEY)
Financial liabilities: sREE
Amortised cost B HA A

6. €RTH

The Group
rEH
2011 2010
=T
RMB’000
AREBTFT

e
RMB’'000
AR#F 5T

86,530 75,425

40,533 47,430

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and fair
value interest rate risks), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no major hedging
activities are undertaken by management.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

(b) EAMEREIREE B ERBUER

AEEEXBEHSHAKRSZ BV ERR
misER(BENERR - X FENXE
) EERBREABESRER - REEK
BRERAREEERZEINERMGH TR
BRI RS KEERAEENBERENEE
EZ

ERETHERAKEZMERER - AR

REE 2 BB RE NI S EY TR
EREWEETERE AR

rEERERMITAAENRRERSREE
IREEt AR R AL B AR -
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEGEIEERERBEE)

policies (Continued)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
respective subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

(i)  Exposure to interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rate relates primarily to its bank deposits and
interest-bearing bank loans. Interest-bearing bank loans
at floating rates expose the Group to interest rate risk.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2011, if interest rates at the date had
been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
decrease/increase by RMB25,000 (2010: RMB21,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure as
result of increase/decrease interest expense on short-
term bank loans net off with interest income from bank
deposits.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEGEIEERERBEE)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances, trade
receivables included in the consolidated statements of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to the Group's financial assets.

The Group has certain exposure to credit risk as the trade
receivables from the five largest customers as at 31 December
2011 represented 58% (2010: 62%) of total trade receivables,
while 17% (2010: 17%) of the total trade receivables were
due from the largest single customer. It has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are international and state-owned banks
with good reputation.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated with its
financial assets.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
below have been drawn up based on the contractual maturities
of the undiscounted financial liabilities including interest that
will accrue to those liabilities except where the Group are
entitled and intends to repay the liability before its maturity.

1ZEER
FEABRAMBIRARNA S RIRITHE
P RUGRIANRHEREEAREN SR
BEAHNSESEERR

AEEERETEERR  BRAAREFER
—T——F+= H*‘I——EIE’\JE%EEH&?A
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. EMIHz)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BiFEMEERENRBE &)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REELER (&)
At 31 December 2011 R=—B——F+=-A=+—8

The Group
r&E
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 2to Over undiscounted  carrying

interest rate 1 year 5 years 5years  cash flow amount
ik 83 AERRS

BRAZR PSR- WMEERF EENRE REAH WREAE

% RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TR ARMTT AR¥TR AR¥TR

Non-derivative financial FTESHER

liabilities
Trade payables B SN A = 10,374 = = 10,374 10,374
Accruals and other payables — FE&t K E b fE(T K E - 4,950 - - 4,950 4,950
Borrowings f&E 6.5% 25,805 - - 25,805 25,000
Finance lease payables ENREHEETE 7.6% 216 - - 216 209
41,345 - - 41,345 40,533
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
At 31 December 2011 (Continued)

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate

AT

6.

Within
1 year

EBAE O
% RMB000
ABHTR

Non-derivative financial FTESHER

E@MI R
(b) BAEEMBERBERWE &)

REELER (&)
R-B——F+=A=+—RH#H)

The Company
N

Total

Total

2to Over undiscounted  carrying

5 years 5years  cash flow amount
AERRS

MEZRF EENRE REAH IREAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR%TT AR%¥TR

liabilities
Accruals and other payables  JEst & &
H A JERTRIE - 350 - - 350 350
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JEFTHIEB A BIZUIE - 310 - - 310 310
660 - - 660 660
FESEANMERGRAR —E——F 53R 75
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. EMIHz)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BiFEMEERENRBE &)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REELER (&)
At 31 December 2010 RZE—FF+-A=+—H

The Group
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 210 Over undiscounted carrying

interest rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
g 2

BIRH= PR—F MEELEF RENRE ik FEAE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTRT ARETR

Non-derivative financial FTESHER

liabilities

Trade payables 25 ENFE - 15472 - - 15472 15472

Accruals and other payables — FE:tER K
AT FIE - 9,645 - - 9,645 9,645
Amounts due to shareholders  F& % 578 - 22 - - 22 22
Borrowings BE 5.1% 22,378 - - 22,378 21,848
Finance lease payables ENRERETE 7.6% 260 216 - 476 443
47,777 216 - 47,993 47,430
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
At 31 December 2010

E@MI R
(b) BAEEMBERBERWE &)

wBEEmE(E)
RZE—ZF+_A=+—H(#)

The Company

Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 210 Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
A x
BIRH= PR—F MEELEF RENRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARET:T
Non-derivative financial FFTESRMER
liabilities
Accruals and other payables fEER R
HitERFE - 507 - - 507 507
Amounts due to R BARFE
subsidiaries - 6,275 - - 6,275 6,275
6,782 - - 6,782 6,782
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(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

(i)  the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices
and ask prices respectively;

(i)  the fair values of derivative instruments are calculated
using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow analysis is performed using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives.

(i) the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding those described above) are
determined in accordance with generally pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which
the fair value is observable:

1. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

2. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
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Financial Instruments (Continued)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position (Continued)

3. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

No analysis is disclosed since the Group has no financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition
at fair value at the end of the reporting period

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from 2010.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which includes
borrowings and finance lease payables) and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the issuance of new shares as well as the
addition of new borrowings.

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at 31 December 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

Debt af&
Total equity iR

Gearing ratio BERAELE

6.

EMITE %)
(¢ ®MITEZAFEE)

A BRI KR Z 2 FlE 2 (E)
3. BR=RAVEFEASELIFENT

BEEMSEBR(TABRRESR) ZEE
B EBEZ HERMITAE -

H-

RBEHR - AR ARELESHTAR
NFERERATEFE  WAERKES
BT

EXERER

AREFERRER - URERAEEN S TRER

FEKE  RARNEAEERERESEZ T

RERFMESER - B T —TFL - KEE
RERES RIS TE -

\|

o

AEBEZEARBEREBER(BREEREMNR
BREFIR)ARAREHEE ARIEEZ(BRFED
BITEARLFEE) - ARREZTE R EARR
B ERR —8n  EFEEEARAREAR
HEER - AEBMIRIBER 2B RBEBEITH

MR FTIREE - TR AR E ARG -
EZFE%H:%@
RIE——FR-_T-TF+-_A=+—RHER
BELLENT :
2011
—=——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
25,209 22,291
112,574 86,350
22.4% 25.8%
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8.

80

Segment Information

The directors, being the chief operating decision maker, consider
that the Group operates in a single operating segment as the
revenue and profit are derived from the manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration
parts and infrastructure to the customers in the PRC. In addition, all
the Group’s non-current assets are principally located in the PRC.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented.

Information about product is set out in Note 9.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2011, revenue generated from four
(2010: three) customers of the Group amounting to RMB92,295,000
(2010: RMB54,216,000) has individually accounted for over 10%
of the Group’s total revenue. No other single customer contributed
10% or more to the Group’s revenue for both years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, are set out below:

Customer A ZEA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C ®PC
Customer D EFD

7 RRE

RPN AME N 2 EPR A AT EEPEE RIHE
AR =R EREShER  Eit - &
F(AEBEERRE)RSAEEELEE K
B0 o WIN ARBEFRARBEETRUNF
o A WA FDHT

BRAEmMAER BT °

EEFEREFHNER
HEZ——H+-A=+—HIFE 84K
SENHERFP(ZE—ZF : ZR)ELENHK
AARK92295000C(=ZZF—ZF : AR
54,216,00070) & B AL E AR AFEIR10% °
HE-_T——FRk-FT—ZFF+-A=+—H1t
MEFE - BmEmE —FPEAEEHKA
10%3k A E ©

TEEPHUA (B EARE B YA 10% 3 IA
E)#EmmT

2011 2010
—g——% —2-F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARET
30,376 21,021
22,124 19,914
17,059 13,281
22,736 -
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9. Revenue 9. WA
The Group's revenue represents sales of nonwoven fabric products REBRAERR BN MERNESME
used in automotive interior decoration parts and infrastructure. mAYHE °
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAH DT -

2011 2010
—g——-f&  —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Nonwoven fabric for use in automobiles B REMES T
- Sale of automotive floor carpets —REMHEEAEE 96,771 75,773
— Sale of other automotive parts —Hih) RSB REEE M HEE 56,121 43,048
Nonwoven fabric for use in infrastructure AREENELS T 3,584 4,269
156,476 123,090
10. Other Income 10. HA

2011 2010
—=——f

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Interest income FLEMA 24 25
Government grants (Note) BB E (A7:7) - 3,943
Technical support income BTz A 600 3,000
Others Hib 374 212
998 7,180
Note: et -
During the year ended 31 December 2010, government grants mainly HEZZ—ZF+-A=+—HILFE BN
represent reward of RMB3,000,000 from New District Administrative FTEERESTARBFHIEEEZESRAANRF MK
Committee of Wuxi Municipal People’s Government for successful listing of D EWATIR T2 EE e AREE3,000,0007T © A KRB
the Company and compensation of RMB900,000 for the purpose of land FFERETHBERAEHEARK00,0007T © EH
restoration in previous year. They were determined at the sole discretion of B9 iR BIBUT R 2R EIERE ©

the relevant PRC government authorities.
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11. Profit from Operations 11.
The Group's profit from operations is stated after charging/(crediting)
the following:

g A

AEEMLLRNEHR,GEA) TFIEE

2011 2010
—g——%  -F-TF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETTT

Auditors’ remuneration 1% B AT 482 527
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments — #$5781 1 0 & 218 73 73
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - E MEREITE 3,415 3,153
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented BABEMED

premises KEHEEA 942 421
Staff costs including directors’ remuneration: BTRA(BRIEEEHH) -

— Salaries and other benefits —He MNEMEF 10,666 8,686

— Retirement benefits scheme contributions — R FIFT B K 2,654 1,940
Cost of inventories sold recognised as cost of TR AIHERAND EFERA

sales 89,446 69,811
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEKEEZ

equipment it 47 315
Inventories written off FEHMHE 294 175
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables FL& 5 UK TEHER BB E 1B 246 -
Research and development expenditure I gT MR EE S L (a2 (a)

(Note (a)) 4,973 8,256
Listing expenses il Fa - 6,723
Less: Government grant (Note (b)) S BB & (B b)) = (6,400)

- 323
Notes: it -

(@  The amount included in cost of sales for the year amounted to
approximately RMB4,973,000 (2010: RMB8,191,000).

(b)  Government grant represents reward from Wuxi New District Jiangxi
Sub-district Office for successful listing of the Company.
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12. Finance Costs 12.

2011 2010
—B——F —T-TF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

Interest expenses on the Group’s borrowings 78 B (&Y F1] 8.2 F

AR®TT ARMET T

— Short-term bank loans —RITREBABER 1,464 1,227
— Borrowings from unrelated parties wholly —REFEEFERAFA
repayable within five years BEUFEMER - 8
Finance lease charges MmEREEA 26 43
Net foreign exchange loss M N B RS R = 421
1,490 1,699
13. Income Tax Expense 13. FRfSHiAx

2011 2010
—g—-5  —2-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

Current tax BIHEATE IR
Provision for PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") AR EMEFTER

ARETT ARKET T

(T Bl 2EFTEHE ) BB 4,056 3,581
Overprovision for EIT in previous years BAEFEERBROEMESHRARERE (341) _
Withholding tax for dividend from a subsidiary 7 &8 — & B2 71 MR B FEFF = 770
Deferred tax EERE
Current year REE (91) (368)
3,624 3,983

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group
has no assessable profit in Hong Kong during the year (2010: Nil).

REFASHENABEA NS ([ RBERRE
EDHRPIRER  AEERFRSHEELEBER
REBHABMNEMMEH -

HRAEBENFAERBILEE L EAERN

wA - M ERBANERIELBEE(—F—F
FE)
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PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable rates based on estimated
taxable income earned by the PRC subsidiary of the Group with
certain tax preference, based on existing legislation, interpretation
and practice in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the enterprise income tax rules and regulations of the
PRC, the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiary is
25%.

Joystar (Wuxi) Automotive Interior Decoration Co., Ltd. (“Joystar
(Wuxi)”), being a foreign investment enterprise engaged in
manufacturing activities in an advanced and new technology district,
is entitled to an exemption from EIT for two years starting from
its first profit-making year, followed by a 50% tax relief for the
following three years. Joystar (Wuxi) was entitled to and enjoyed the
first exemption year in 2006 and a 50% tax relief for the three years
ended 31 December 2010. Therefore, the applicable income tax rate
of Joystar (Wuxi) for the year ended 31 December 2010 is 12.5%.

Pursuant to PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, an innovative and
high-end technology enterprise may enjoy a preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% (“IHT Enterprise Rate”). On 22 December
2009, Joystar (Wuxi) obtained the “Certificate of Innovative and
High-end Technology Enterprise” with validity period of three years.
The IHT Enterprise Rate enjoyed by Joystar (Wuxi) will be expired in
December 2012. Consequently, the applicable income tax rate of
Joystar (Wuxi) for the year ended 31 December 2011 is 15%.
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13. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 13.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the profit
before tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax rate is as
follows:

BB )
IS B S BT U AP B B B
AT HPRBEHBRATT

2011 2010
—g—-&  -T-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Profit before tax R A& A

Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate of BB EMSRNE25%:TE

25% (2010: 25%) (ZZ—F%F : 25%)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible N ATHIRIBI L T TS 2 28
Tax effect of income that are not taxable BERBMANT B E
PRC dividend withholding tax Bl AR B IE AR
Over provision in previous years WA FE AR
Tax effect of tax preferential period HIBEBRBNRETE
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries WEBRRTRBMENTE
Tax loss not recognised RERBIEEE
Income tax expense PSR

22,475 18,480
5,619 4,620
91 1,507
(168) 18

- 531
(341) -
(2,579) (3,553)
341 860
661 -
3,624 3,983

Under the New Tax Law, from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of business in the
PRC or which have an establishment or place of business in the
PRC but whose relevant income is not effectively connected with
the establishment or a place of business in the PRC, will be subject
to withholding tax at the rate of 10% (unless reduced by treaty)
on various types of passive income such as dividends derived from
sources within the PRC.

According to the notice Caishui 2008 No. 1 released by the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, distributions of
the pre-2008 retained profits of a foreign-invested enterprise to a
foreign investor in 2008 or after are exempt from corporate income
tax. Accordingly, the retained profits as at 31 December 2007 in the
Group's PRC subsidiaries will not be subject to 10% withholding tax
on future distributions.

REFHE  B-FTT/N\F—A—BE  RPE
FARRIEE S B SEE NP BIREA
R SR B AR A B E R A IR
NPT B E R B ERBE IFERD
% BARSBEEE WA RN HERAZ K
BIIR10% B R (R IR B U5 E R S ) S TE
e

REV B ERERR R /HEM 2R 5200851
SR IERELEE_TT/N\FRZREMI
BIREED IR —TTN\FRZREEN - A&
RSB EMEH - At - BRIEL D IRE -
FEFEPBRNBARN-_ZZLF+-_RA=+—
B Z R NS BABMN10% I
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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According to the EIT law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10%
withholding income tax will be imposed on dividend relating to
profits earned by the companies established in the PRC in the
calendar year 2008 onwards to their foreign shareholders. For
investors incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of 5%
will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential rate of 5% as
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are directly held by an investment
holding company incorporated in Hong Kong. No deferred tax
has been provided for in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to such profits as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately RMB18,851,000 (2010:
RMB14,497,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 206,356,164 (2010: 162,876,712) in issue during the
year. For the year ended 31 December 2010, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares was adjusted to reflect the share issue on
the Listing Date.

Diluted earnings per share

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, diluted earnings
per share are the same as the basic earnings per share as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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15. EEE A

15. Directors’ Remuneration

Details of remuneration of the directors of the Company for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

RIBEETRANREE R RRGIE 1616 EAF
EARAREFHMOFEOT

Retirement benefit

Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
e FERFaL ERERGHEIER &ast
2011 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
—2—-F “B--% “T-%F 8- —“T-%F -B--F “T-T%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARMTR ARETT ARETR AR®TT AR¥TR ARETT
Name of director EEps
Executive director HITEE
Zhuang Yuejin frgisid 561 191 145 120 M 37 747 348
Pak Ping ("Mr. Pak”)  AF(A%E]) 225 77 - - 12 2 237 79
Wong Hsiao Hung /ML

(removed on (R=Z——F

10 October 2011) TATE%ER) 564 179 - - 10 2 574 181
Chen Xianping BRET

(resigned on (R=Z2——%

2 December 2011) +TZAZHEF) 213 77 145 120 41 37 399 234
Ruan Bixia frEE 149 51 - - - - 149 51
Wong Ho Yin =ER

(appointed on (M=%

30 June 2011) NAZTREZMA) 151 - - - 7 - 158 -
Independent BUHBTEE

non-executive director
Law Tze Lun BTH

(resigned on (RZT—F

9 September 2011) NANAET) 59 22 - - - - 59 22
Tang Yanfei BAIE 50 13 - - - - 50 13
Feng Xueben HEAR 50 13 - - - - 50 13
Mak Wai Ho EER

(appointed on (M=%

9 September 2011) NANBEZRA) 31 - - - - - 31 -

2,053 623 290 240 11 78 2,454 9
FRAENMEEGRAR —T——F 53R 87
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15. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued)
From 1 January 2010 to 15 September 2010, Ms. Wong Hsiao Hung,
a former executive director of the Company, has agreed to waive
her emolument of RMB434,000. Save as disclosed above, there was
no agreement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the directors as a discretionary bonus or an
inducement to joint or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2010: Nil).

16. Five Highest Paid Employees
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 4 (2010: 3) directors, details of whose remuneration set
out in Note 15 above. The emoluments of the remaining 1 (2010: 2)
individuals are set out below:

AR SRR
RORBF B

Basic salaries and allowances
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

15.

16.

EE5FM =)
BE-E-TF—-A-RAE-_ZE-TFHA+H
A RARRRITEFE M EITERERE
HEN & AR%A434,0007T © B LR EEIN - 5]
BEESNAFTENREIBERRTAME 2%
B o

RBE-Z——F+-_A=1+—HILFE %
B ERERNEENME - (ERREMALRSE
B ANARK BB BIEAT k22 - RFRRE
BWE(CE-—ZF 8)-

hEREMEES
AEBRAFERNALSSHMA L BENS
(Z2—2F: Z8)EF  WEFBHIINLX
MIEET5 « BT — AJEHMAL(ZT—TF
) F BT

2011 2010
—g——-%&  —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR  ARMTR
166 624

5 40

171 664

The emoluments fell within the following band:

e N FLATEHER

Number of individuals
AT#HE

2011
—=——f

Nil to RMB 1,000,000

=% AR #1,000,0007T

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2010: Nil).

88 China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2011

RBE-Z——F+-A=1+—HILFE &%
B EALLRSHMES XNME - ERREE
MAAREK B SHANAAR K BIL A EERD - IFSRER
ME(CE-2F 8\



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PR R L (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE—FT——F+ A=+ HIFE

17.

18.

Profit for the Year Attributable to the Owners
of the Company

The profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company included a loss of approximately RMB3,651,000 (2010:
RMB8,715,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Dividend
The directors do not recommend the payments of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

17.

18.

RRRER AEAEFERR

NAREE AEGFEREFSEERANR R
HREEMNEEY ARE3 651,000 (—2—Z
F : AR¥8,715,0007T) °

IRE
EETREMEE T ——F+-A=+—HI
FERNEMBE(ZE—2F : #) -
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment

90

Cost

At 1 January 2010

Additions

Transfer from construction
in progress

Reclassification

Disposals

At 31 December 2010 and
1 January 2011

Additions

Transfer from construction
in progress

Disposals

At 31 December 2011

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment
At 1 January 2010
Charge for the year
Reclassification
Disposals

At 31 December 2010 and
1 January 2011

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2011

Net book value
At 31 December 2011

At 31 December 2010

A
“5-%%-A-H
PE
ERTREEA

ENDE
e

R=Z-2F1+-f
“t-BR-E-%
-E-H

HE
EETREA

HE
R

-
=8

ZTERAE

R-2-F£-F-H
RN

ELipE

HE

R=F-FF1+-f

=t-HR=E——F
~f~8

EEx
&

RZF-—F124
=t-A

19. ¥ - BEKRE

The Group
AEE
Plant and Motor Furniture Leasehold  Construction

Buildings machinery vehicles  and fixtures  improvement in progress Total

BT  BERENW RE BRREE HENERE EEIR CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T T ARETT ARETT ARETT
9,640 27,254 1,856 608 1,548 - 40,906
- 1523 461 241 270 3,568 6,063
- 2,218 - - - (2,218) -
- (66) - 66 - - -
- (1,251) - - - - (1,251)
9,640 29,678 2317 915 1818 1,350 45718
- 1338 135 16 423 15,751 17,663
376 16,725 - - - (17,101) -
- (6,881) (69) - - - (6,950)
10,016 40,860 2,383 931 2,241 - 56,431
1,539 7,169 342 386 862 - 10,298
322 2,320 247 125 139 - 3,153
_ () _ 1 _ _ _
- (57) - - - - (571)
1,861 8917 589 512 1,001 - 12,880
327 2,453 289 17 229 - 3415
- (2,062) (55) - - - 2,117)
2,188 9,308 823 629 1,230 - 14,178
7828 31,552 1,560 302 1,011 - 42,253
7,779 20,761 1,728 403 817 1,350 32,838
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 19 Y% - BEERE®)

RZE——F+ZA=+—H ' AEEEHRER
BB AREET,828,000L(ZE—ZF : ARW
7,779,00070) VIEFVE R HRITE RTINS -

At 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of buildings of the
Group pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans amounted to
approximately RMB7,828,000 (2010: RMB7,779,000).

MN-TE——F+-A=1+—0 Z~EERHEH
EIE NS EREELS A ARE785,0007T
(Z=—Z4F : AR¥920,0007T) °

At 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of motor vehicles held
by the Group under finance leases amounted to approximately
RMB785,000 (2010: RMB920,000).

20. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 20. AL A ERIE
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETTT
Current assets REEE 73 73
Non-current assets IERBVEE 2,990 3,063
3,063 3,136

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

2010

—E——fF —E=—FF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREETTT

At the beginning of the year REH] 3,136 3,209
Amortisation for the year FEEE (73) (73)
At the end of the year RERK 3,063 3,136

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent payment for

AEEOMAN T HEEFREARET BEOE

land use rights outside Hong Kong under medium term leases. BB AN [ A 1 b {5 AR ST (S 500 o
RZE——F+ZA=1+—0  AKEERER
BHAARARES 063,000 (ZE—FF : ARK
3,136,0007T) FIBf LA EFBEEAHIRITE
REVHEAR S -

At 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of prepaid land lease
payments pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans amounted
to approximately RMB3,063,000 (2010: RMB3,136,000).
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21. Loan Receivables
The loan receivables represent advances to individuals who are
independent third parties. The amounts due are unsecured, interest
free and fully settled during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
repayable in 2 to 5 years).

As at 31 December 2010, the loan receivables are neither past due
nor impaired.

22. Investments in Subsidiaries

21. EWER
FEW S SE10 5 BB B = M ER AT EL®
B FERENAEER  2ERRBE-T
——F+ A=+ —BItFEE(ZE—FF 12
ESENEIE) BREE o

RIE-ZF+-RA=+—H  BREREES
HigORE

22. RFfE AR 2 RE
The Company

ENAN
2011 2010

—F——F —T-TF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTFT

Unlisted shares, at costs JEEMRR + IRAAR
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE S BT BB A IR 0E
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A R FE

17,872 17,553
23,492 32,605
310 6,275

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and recoverable/repayable on demand.
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22. RB AR ZRE (&)
R-TB——F+=-A=+—0  BEANAFHE
ARISBEIIINT -

22. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2011 were as follows:

Name of Company

NCIR=E

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation

HMRY, BRBR
2 B

Issued and
paid up
capital
2BTR
BEBRA

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AR B RIS
Ao

Direct Indirect

B A

Principal activities

TEXEH

Joystar (BVI) Automotive Interior British Virgin Islands usD1 100% — Investment holding
Decoration Limited ("BVI") 1£7T AR
REBHB RS
([REERARES])
Joystar (BVI) Auto Inter-parts Limited BVI usD1 100% — Investment holding
ERER RS (E REZER
Link Excellent Limited BVI UsD50,000 100% — Investment holding
REBHE RS 50,0005 7T REER
Joystar International Investment Hong Kong HK$1,170,177 - 100% Investment holding
Limited HE 1,170,177 7T BB
BEBERIRERFRAR]
Joystar China Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Dormant
BREPEKREFRAR B 17T Tmezx
Joystar (Wuxi) PRC usb7,477,172 - 100% Manufacturing of
152 (&) H 7,477 17237 nonwoven fabric
products used in
automotive interior
decoration parts and
infrastructure
SLERNTENE R
AR ESMEm®R
Link Sharp International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Dormant
e 10,0007 7T EmeE
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23. Inventories 23. &

The Group
AEE
2011 2010

—=——fF
RMB*000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Raw materials B E 6,257 5,105
Work in progress TR 1,195 795
Finished goods BIRK G 6,354 4,037
13,806 9,937

24. Trade Receivables 24. EZ EWFIE

The Group
M
2011 2010

—s——f
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBETTT

Trade receivables B S FE 60,611 47,222
Allowance for doubtful debts REEHEHE (502) (256)
60,109 46,966
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B 5 BWRIE#)

24. Trade Receivables (continued) 24.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date,
and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

REBEEZEAH B REFRMERER DT (&N
BRARRBHE) T -

The Group

2010
T T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
0 to 90 days 0%290H 49,203 40,485
91 to 180 days 91%180H 10,733 5,462
181 to 365 days 1812365H 173 681
Over 365 days 8365 H - 338
60,109 46,966

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. The TEEEEFPHBESHEREEAEE - RERP

credit terms generally ranging from 30 to 120 days (2010: ranging
from 30 days to 120 days), depending on the creditworthiness of
customers and the existing relationship with the Group. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2011, approximately RMB7,437,000 (2010:
RMB6,401,000) of trade receivables were pledged to a bank to
secure short-term bank loans as set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of approximately
RMB17,491,000 (2010: RMB11,359,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

EERRIREREENABRAE  EEH BN
FI0E120H(ZZF—ZF : NF30E120H) ©
NEBEBUIEGREE AR 2 FEUWGRIA o @1 HAK(T
ZEBESREEETHEN  BHRKFIES
P BFRIE o

AEBENE S ERFRZREETIAARE
@

W-T——F+_A=+—8 BHEKX
HAAREET 437,000 0 (= —FF : ARK
6,401,0007T) B MRITHEBIE AR HRITER
(BB RF I FE33) 2 FEIR -

WZZ——F+=-A=+—8 EZEKZHE
HARMEN7,491,000 (ZE—FF : ARK
11,359,0007T) E BB ARIR(E - ZERBES K
ATEIBERCHENBY R, - AEEIREY
ERZEERSE RS o
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24. Trade Receivables (continued) 24. EFRWNFIE (2)
ZEE HEWFENERR TN

The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2011 2010
—=E2——F —E—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT

Overdue by: A
0 to 90 days 0290H 17,482 10,295
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 9 365
181 to 365 days 181%365H - 361
Over 365 days HBiE365H - 338
17,491 11,359

N-EBE——F+-"A=+—H  Ctdstralk
085 EIHRBELHAREE246,0000(ZE—F
F o E)EHEE - BRERKEUEEER IR

As at 31 December 2011, an allowance was made for estimated
irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately RMB246,000 (2010:
Nil). The impaired trade receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that the receivables RENTFER  ERETERSRKFE A
were not recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over AATUYLE o A BRI B2 S SR A
these balances. @ -

AEERREE ZRESENREATIT

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables which are
impaired is presented as follows:

2011 2010
—g——%  -T-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

Overdue by: HHA
181 to 365 days 1812365H 222 -
Over 365 days HBim365H 280 256
502 256

96 China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2011



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PA SRR L (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE T ——Ff A=+ HIFE

24. Trade Receivables (continued) 24. ESEWFIE (&)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REREEE )

2011 2010
—B——fF —ETF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

At 1 January n—H—H 256 256
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables &3R5 8 5 BN FRTE 2 BBk 18 246 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 502 256

25. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 25. AR ~ RERHEMERFIR

The Group
AEEH
2011 2010
—B——F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTFT

Advances to suppliers ) 4 8 P 2 3R - 2,017
Trade deposits g 5%e 6,959 11,000
Prepayments SEANE/OE 1,665 410

Receivables from disposal of property, HEWE BB MERE 2 BIGIE
plant and equipment 5,361 -
Others Hib 1,273 3,391
15,258 16,818

The Company
/N
2011 2010

A —T-TF
RMB*000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBFT

Prepayments A FIE 82 -
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial M EESEEEEORE - iR E 2R
assets included in the above balances related to receivables for B B B AN R R SO SR FE MR IB B -

which there was no recent history of default.
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26. Amount Due from a Director 26. FE—BRERRIE

The Group
AEE

Maximum balance
outstanding during the year 2011 2010
FARERZSSHE —E——F ===
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TT ARKETFT

Mr. Chen Xianping FREAE o4 38 - 38
The amount due from a director is unsecured, interest free and JEW— B EEFIAE T BB - 28 BIRERkIL
recoverable on demand. [5] o
Mr. Chen Xianping has resigned as an executive director of the BRETAEER-E——F+ - AZHHEAR
Company on 2 December 2011. AEITES o

27. Cash and Bank Balances 27. RERBITEER
As at 31 December 2011, cash and bank balances are denominated RZZE—F+=-_A=+—8 ' Be &kiR174sk
in the following currencies: RIATEEGHE :

The Group
AEE
2011

—=——fF
RMB*000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Renminbi NS 10,380 16,097
Hong Kong dollars BT 6,006 1,465
United States dollars e 1 60
Euro BT - 1,368

16,387 18,990
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27. Cash and Bank Balances (continued)

Renminbi ARHE
Hong Kong dollars BT

27. RERBITEER2)

The Company
ZRA T
2011 2010

—E——fF —EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

2 2
5,872 450
5,874 452

As at 31 December 2011, the bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi amounted to approximately
RMB10,368,000 (2010: RMB16,095,000) were kept in banks in the
PRC. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

RZBE—F+_A=Z+—H AEEUAR
B EL T RR P BEERRITZRITERL
ABARE10,368000 L (ZE—ZF 1 ARK
16,095,0007T) ° AR H IR SNE BB T H
HINE B B 5] I 4 TE ~ B R ROMNE B IR AR
fE o
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28. Share Capital 28. IR

Number
of shares Amount Amount

BAPBE o X G
HK$'000 RMB’000
BT ARBTT

Authorised: VETE

Ordinary shares or HK$0.1 each &RE(EO.1787T2 LB

At 1 January 2010 R-E—ZTF—H—H (a) 3,800,000 380 333
Increase in authorised ordinary & J15% E E A%

shares () 9,996,200,000 999,620 863,162
At 31 December 2010 and RZE—FF+=HA

31 December 2011 —t+—BR_F—%F

+=—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 863,495
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAR :
Ordinary shares or HK$0.1 each &RE(EO. 17872 LB
At 1 January 2010 RZE—FF—H—H 1 1 1
Shares swap i in B i b) 3,799,999 379 332
Capitalisation ¥ Nd () 146,200,000 14,620 12,624
Issue of shares by way of placing LABRE 77 2 2E1TR% 1D (e) 50,000,000 5,000 4,318
At 31 December 2010 and RZE—TF+A=+—

1 January 2011 AR =—F——F—HF—H 200,000,000 20,000 17,275
Issue of shares by way of placing LAERE 77 2 2E1TR% D ) 40,000,000 4,000 3,277
At 31 December 2011 R=ZB——%+=A

=+—H 240,000,000 24,000 20,552

100 China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2011



For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEr—FT——F+ - H=+—HIFE

Note:

(a)

(

(d)

(e)

®

The Company was incorporated on 9 December 2009 in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Laws as an exempted company with
limited liability, with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided
into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. On the same date, one share
was allotted and issued nil paid to the shareholder and transferred to Ms.
Wong Hsiao Hung.

On 18 June 2010, pursuant to a share swap agreement entered into
among the Company, Joystar (BVI) Automotive Interior Decoration
Limited, Joystar International Investment Limited and all of the then
shareholders of Joystar International Investment Limited, Joystar (BVI)
Automotive Interior Decoration Limited acquired the entire issued
share capital of Joystar International Investment Limited from the then
shareholders of Joystar International Investment Limited comprising the
same persons as the shareholders of the Company immediately prior
to the capitalisation issue and the placing of shares, in consideration
of (i) Joystar (BVI) Automotive Interior Decoration Limited crediting as
paid up the initial one nil paid share of Joystar (BVI) Automotive Interior
Decoration Limited; (ii) the Company crediting as fully paid at par
the initial one nil paid share allotted in (a); (iii) the Company allotting
and issuing 3,799,999 shares to shareholders of Joystar International
Investment Limited immediately before such share swap.

On 13 September 2010, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$380,000 to HK$1,000,000,000 by the creation
of an additional 9,996,200,000 shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 24 September 2010, conditional upon the crediting of the
Company’s share premium account as a result of the issue of placing
shares pursuant to the placing, the Directors are authorised to capitalise
a sum of HK$14,620,000 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company by applying such sum towards the paying up
in full at par a total of 146,200,000 shares for allotment and issue.

In connection with the placing of shares of the Company, an aggregate
of 50,000,000 new ordinary shares with HK$0.1 each were issued at
a price of HK$0.93 per share for a total cash consideration, before of
issuance costs, of HK$46,500,000.

On 3 November 2011, the Company issued 40,000,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each at the price of HK$0.25 each by way of placing.

Kt -

(a)

()

(e)

®

ARARRZZEENF+-_ANBEHRSHESRE
NRVEFME I AERRERAR  SEERAR
380,000/ 7T * % 43,800,000 % Z X E{E0.175
RIS - RIA - —IRARBERMNEERETT
RERWEERETFENILL -

RZZ—ZFA+NE - RIEARQF -+ Joystar
(BVI) Automotive Interior Decoration Limited
BEBEBRKREBRARIREEBERKRERRA
AIEREODEIRE AR D B - Joystar
(BVI) Automotive Interior Decoration Limited B
BERREEARARSHOBREKERER
BIREBRAREIHEEITRA - s 2EBIEEK
BEERAFERHHRIAZEARRANRERE
BITRBROEEMNARRMBREERAL
i BB A(i) Joystar (BVI) Automotive Interior
Decoration Limited #5 Joystar (BVI) Automotive
Interior Decoration Limited fx #] A9 — % & 1€ %
ARSI BER ¢ (VAR E @) EPERENZY]
—RARBE D ARIIABE ; (i) BEZRHD
Bi2F] - ARRAIEEBRBIREBRARMNRE
et & 25773,799,9990% A% 7

R-ZB—ZEHA+=0 AATNEERLE
iB¥71£9,996,200,000 A% & & E E &0.10 T HY
[i% 5 F1380,000/# 7T % 1,000,000,000 7T °

R-ZE—TFENA-FNA  REESETARE
RDMABFT ARRTRMDBER - EFEEE
BAR AR EERF AN S 14,620,000/
JC W hE BB A bl S REARR I AR T R 3T
4 $£146,200,0000& J& 15 °

PARBRMEEMS + A 3£50,000,00088 F A
HEEA0IB T EBRMUER0.93FTZ
BI8%1T + 4838 & K ({8 546,500,000/ 7T (F1k
BATAARRT) ©

RZT——F+—A=R  FARFAREF XK

FA%0.258 7T 2 (B 1% 8£7740,000,000 04 F X E{E
0BT, -
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29. Reserves
The Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein for the

29. {#E
AEE
AEBEARBEFEY HESEREEHRG

102

current and prior year and presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

The Company

BRDEHRANZT -

EAN/NS

Foreign
currency
Share Contributed translation Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R EE BARE MNESRERE RBR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR¥ETT ARETE ARETT
At 1 January 2010 NZE-TF—F—H - - - - -
Loss for the year FNEE - - - (8,715) (8,715)
Other comprehensive loss for ~ FREMEERIE - BRATER
the year, net of income tax:
Exchange differences on BWENEZ EHZH
translating foreign currency - - (516) - (516)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEEEHBAE
for the year - - (516) (8,715) (9,231)
Reorganisation E - 17,219 - - 17,219
Issue of shares on placement B¢ &R 1T 35,835 - - - 35,835
Capitalisation issue BRI BT (12,624) - - - (12,624)
Share issue expenses el (4,646) - - - (4,646)
At 31 December 2010 and RZZ—ZTFE+-_A=+-8BRK
1 January 2011 —T——%—H-H 18,565 17,219 (516) (8,715) 26,553
Loss for the year FEREIR - - - (3,651) (3,651)
Other comprehensive loss for ~ FREMEHEEIE - BFTEH
the year, net of income tax:
Exchange differences on HENEZERETR
translating foreign currency - - (923) - (923)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEEEBRE
for the year - - (923) (3,651) (4,574)
Issue of shares on placement B¢ &1 TS 4,915 - - - 4915
Share issue expenses RN EE( TR X (786) - - - (786)
At 31 December 2011 R=Z-—5+=ZA=+-H 22,694 17,219 (1,439) (12,366) 26,108
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Note:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at a price
in excess of their par value per share and after deduction of capitalisation issue
and issuance costs of placing of shares.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the Group reorganisation
implemented in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares in 2010
and represented the difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the reorganisation scheme,
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefore.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Statutory reserve

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall appropriate 10%
of its annual statutory net profit (after offsetting any prior year’s losses) to
the statutory reserve fund account in accordance with the PRC Company
Law. When the balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s
share capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve fund
can be utilised to offset prior year’s losses or to increase capital after proper
approval.

Kt -

BRI ME

REFASHBERRE  ARTABRMEERANERA
HAOLFARRMR - HEEERZRRS A HE
AREEALBREAR BB EB R EE D MR0ER -

Bt it B 1R R B D B (A 2 (BIR B IT R R
IR E A BTT M E RN BITRANEE L RRE -

aOtEE
RERZAHBEBEER T - TFEHE AR FBN
EmmATEITRER - EREBEEFSIEORER
AR RN EEESN AR BRI ETAMER AN
RAEERNERE -

SN E R

INER B RERIEREGINERI BRI ME LT
BYNEZETE - ZEB D RYISHREM T4 E T &5t
IR RTE ©

EERE

RIEPEREDE AR BRF B 2B ERRAES
HEDREMHN(BHRBEFEERR)L10%8E
EERBEEP - MZRBL2ARERRREAZ
50% * RIRDEERTIEEME— DK - REFES
R ORERBE U RFEEREFEERIEE -

T —FFR
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30. Trade Payables 30. EZEANARE
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice dates, is as WBIEHZEHE - EHEMNTENERSTOT -
follows:
The Group
AEH
2011
—E——5F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETFT
0 to 90 days 0£90H 8,256 14,567
91 to 180 days 91£E180H 561 291
181 to 365 days 1812365H 1,138 394
Over 365 days BiA365H 419 220
10,374 15,472

Trade payables generally have credit terms ranging from 10 days to

BHRNFENEER RN T108E608 (=
T—ZF : NFI10HZE60H) ©

il

60 days (2010: ranging from 10 days to 60 days).

e ESRNFBEHAARKERE -

All trade payables are denominated in Renminbi.

31. Accruals and Other Payables 31. EstERARHMENTIE
The Group
rEE
2011
—E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREETTT
Advance from customers BP#ER 609 273
Accruals of staff costs fEFTB TR 3,026 3,003
Accruals of operating expenses JEEHE BT 594 4,760
VAT payables FERT IR {ERL 87 706
Others Hih 634 903
4,950 9,645

Accruals of operating expenses

R

The Company
AT
2011 2010

—E——fF
RMB*000
AR¥T T

RMB'000
ARETT

350 507
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32. B RERFKIA

JEN R RFIAUAREE - DAEER - 28
BRESER -

32. Amounts due to Shareholders
Amounts due to shareholders were denominated in Renminbi,
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

33. Borrowings 33. &3

The Group
AEE
2011

2010
—E—EF
RMB’000
ARETIT

S
RMB’'000
ARMF 7

Short-term bank loans, secured RHRITER - BER 25,000 21,000
Loans from unrelated parties, unsecured FERBE S BRI = 848

25,000 21,848
The maturities of the above borrowings are as follows: FMERBER AT

2011 2010
—ZT——F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT

Carrying amount repayable: JEEEFIBAREE :
On demand or within one year REREEIN—FA 25,000 21,848
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities & : A& & EIB NI RARIE (25,000) (21,848)

A—F IR B B FRIR = -

Amount due after one year

As at 31 December 2011, the short-term bank loans were secured
by charges over the Group’s buildings, prepaid land lease payments
and trade receivables of approximately RMB7,828,000 (2010:
RMB7,779,000), RMB3,063,000 (2010: RMB3,163,000) and
RMB7,437,000 (2010: RMB6,401,000) respectively. The weighted
average effective interest rate on the short-term bank loans is 6.49%
(2010: 5.11%) per annum.

The loans from unrelated parties were unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. The loans from unrelated parties were fully
settled during the year ended 31 December 2011.

The carrying amounts of all the Group's borrowings are denominated
in Renminbi.

RZFE——F+ZA=+—0 " RHRITER
Hmﬁél*%%? BN LA ERERE S ER

DRI AREET 828,000 (—FE—F4 : A
E?ﬁ%7,779,00075) AR#3,063,00070(—F—
T AR¥3,163,0007T) & AR¥7,437,000
T(ZZE—ZT4F : ARMG6,401,00070) fE4KI o
REIRITER Z I ERNE AT F6.49E

(ZZ2—ZF:511F) -

EREA BRI AEIEE R EBIREREE -

FHEFEREREE T ——F+=_A=1+—

AL FERHEE -

AEERBERZEMEEIUAREE -
FESENEEARAT —B——4F® 105



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PA SRR L (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE T ——Ff A=+ HIFE

34. Finance Lease Payables 34. B RMERERE

The Group
AEE
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments

BEEENR BEEENRRE

2011 2010 2011 2010
—g——& —T-TF =g--% -FT IF
RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB*000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT ARMTLT ARETR

Amounts payable under finance & EfENFIE -

leases:
Within one year —FNR 216 260 209 234
In more than one year and not BB —FEDRAE

more than five years - 216 - 209

216 476 209 443

Less: future finance charges S RRRE (7) (33) N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations 8 &7#&IEIR (& 209 443 209 443
Less: amount due for settlement 3 : JRENE BB 5

within 12 months (shown ZERN1218 A REEMFRIE

under current liabilities) (209) (234)
Amount due for settlement after 71218 A& &iE K18

12 months - 209
The Group leased certain of its property, plant and equipment under AEENREHENTANHEETYE  BEX
finance leases. At 31 December 2011, the average effective interest ®E o MZTE——F+A=1+—RH  FHER
rate was 7.6% (2010: 7.6%), with remaining lease term of 0.83 BEMEATCE(ZTE—ZTF : 76[E) r M
years (2010: 1.83 years). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates HEHRR0.83F(ZE—FF : 1.834F) - FIE
and all leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements RETHBHIKEET  BfEHEHERETER
have been entered into for contingent rental payments. R R ek sk AT S e 25k -
All finance lease payables are denominated in Renminbi. FrERENREREFBIUARKE -
The Group's finance lease payables are secured by the lessor’s title AEBEMENMEREREYAEEEEMNDA
to the leased assets and personal guarantee executed by a director AERRBEAERBARFRZEERRREAR
and shareholder of the Company, and a director of Joystar (Wuxi). 16 E (F85) 2 —REFE U )IERER o
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35. Deferred Taxation 35. IELEBLIIE
The Group REH
The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities NEBNKEE M BTFFEERNETRIELERIE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior BERBERHEHNOT -
years:
Withholding
Amortisation tax on
of prepaid  Decelerated undistributed
land lease tax profits of PRC
payments depreciation subsidiary
HE
B A MEBARIZ
ALt BE KRR
HERE wE S EilE) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZTF—H—H 31 603 (247) 387
Credit to profit or loss for the year 5 AE A8 4 125 239 368
Exchange differences B 5, HE - - 8 8
At 31 December 2010 and RZE-ZF+-A=+—HK
1 January 2011 —T——%—f—H 35 728 - 763
Credit to profit or loss for the year 5 AF 1B - 91 - 91
At 31 December 2011 R-B——F+=-A=+-—H 35 819 - 854
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after AT R ERE M BAAR KT & 2 RER B4R
offset) for consolidated statement of financial position purposes: (K818 ) 2 DA -
The Group
REHE
2011 2010
—B——f —E—TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E 854 763
Note: Hiet -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not has any unused tax PEREBAR - AN B B ] ] BRI SR R
losses (2010: Nil) available for offset against future profits that may be carried A AT ERPR AR A R i R BRI IB BB (ZE 5§ -
forward indefinitely. /)
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36. Operating Lease Commitment

37.

108

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases within fall due as follows:

36.

RERERE
RIEER - AR B2 T g SR BT T5)
HRE RO IRER ERRAEMT

The Group
AEE
2011 2010

~F——F —T-TF
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT

Within one year —FR 484 781
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZFRF(BEEEMF) 1,620 1,620
After five years hFE 304 709

2,408 3,110

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for its warehouse, factory and office premises. Leases are negotiated
for a range from 1 to 7 years (2010: 1 to 7 years) and rentals are
fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals. The
Group does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the
expiry of the lease period.

Capital Commitment
The Group's capital commitments at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

Acquisition of prepaid land lease payments B ERIA
Contracted but not provided for BEETHBE RS
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE
Contracted but not provided for BaRTAEREE

37.

REMERBERARERRE THRERAE
XENOES - MHREA/N T ELF(=F
—TF . —ELF) MEASRBEEFRRETE
TEREFIAEE - AEEYERNEHERRBE
HEBEEEE -

BAREE
REBEIR - AEEGEAFRET

The Group
&S 3
2011 2010

—B——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBTIT

13,347 13,347
2,358 700
15,705 14,047
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As at 31 December 2011, the Group and the Company did not have
any significant contingent liabilities (2010: Nil).

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, certain property, plant and
equipment (Note 19), prepaid land lease payments (Note 20) and
trade receivables (Note 24) of the Group were pledged as collateral
for secured bank loans (Note 33) and finance lease payables (Note
34) granted to the Group.

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company did not pledge any
assets at the end of the reporting period.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution
of HK$1,000 per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary established in the PRC
are members of a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the
central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of this
subsidiary. The only obligation of this subsidiary with respect to the
central pension scheme is to meet the required contributions under
the scheme.

R=B——F+=A=+—B  AEERAAT
EREAEAIARMBE( T —FE : 1) -

RZT——FR=F-FTF+-A=+—H K
SEETYE  BEREEHEIE19) BT
S FIA (M1 5E20) R E 5 EUEIE (H7E24)
BEEAR T ASEEIKFRITER(MIFE33) R IE
MRERERE (M 34) 2 IR RETIR -

RZE——FR-ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H ' &
AR ERREAREREMEE -

REERBETBRTERTBSETENED AT LR
BRERREERIBFIERESHE([aEE
2)) - REBRBRERE S ZHIIRRERS H
ERTEZS%FE  BREEBARKLRA
1,000/ 7T - BEM®RESFEIELHZKR - A
HEEBME -

B S 2 AREE B A R 2 8 8 R T K
i@z h RRARSFTEIKE - ZHBAREAR
BEEAFENTEZETANLATRERE
AHEIEER - (ERBRIERIZES - 77 T BUR
A EZHB AR ARE RRKEKER 2R
RIEFBEAE - B AR P SRR SR8 2 M
—RBERREF L AABHRK -

T —FFR
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41. Material Related Party Transactions
In addition to the transactions and balances as disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material transaction with related parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with related parties

1. ERBEIRS
BREAMBHRENE M T HENRT SR &S
O ERAEEREMESTEUTEARS

(a) HEESZRS

2011 2010
=—2——F —E—FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREETTT
Sales of plant and machinery from related BARREERREHES

companies in which a director and shareholder {EJERIREE R BIEERE
of the Company has controlling interest Bt g2 - 375
Salary received by a shareholder —ZRERBEWEH S 48 96

Waiver of interest expenses on amount
due to a shareholder

FxZ

FR RN — BARR IR E

- 131

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
Compensation for key management personnel, including
amount paid to the Company'’s directors is as follows:

(b) FEEBEAEZHEHE
FEEEABZHE  BREENAQRE
BB

2011 2010

—E——fF T =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Salaries and other short-term benefits e M E G EAR S 2,343 863
Employer contribution to pension scheme RIS ETEIE | 111 78
2,454 941

(¢ Mr. Pak, a director and shareholder of the Company, and
Ms. Zhu Xiuduan, a director of Joystar (Wuxi), entered into a
personal guarantee agreement dated 29 September 2009 with
Mercedes-Benz Auto Finance Limited to secure the Group's
finance lease payables (Note 34).
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42,

43.

44,

45,

Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2010, amounts due to
shareholders of approximately RMB5,261,000 was settled by issue of
new ordinary shares of 170,177 shares of HK$1 each in a subsidiary
to the respective shareholders.

Comparative
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

Events after the Reporting Period
No significant events after reporting period of the Group are
required to be disclosed in the financial statements.

Authorisation for Issue of Consolidated
Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 2 March 2012.

42.

43.

44,

45,

FRERS
HE-Z-ZTHE+_A=+—RHLFE  EAE
R ARKS,261,0007T 515 B — M B
A EIEMARERERZEIT170177REREE 1A T
ZHERBRTmEHE -

BB T
ETFHBERFEEN S MUK AREEN 2R
e

BEMERSE

AR B IRE B R AR HRRHEENEA
9 -

RETIRGEMB®RE

FEBRRON —_E——F=-A_RREEEeHE
MR ETES -

FRAENMEEGRAR —T——F 53R m



Summary of Financial Information

MBERBE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and LA T &2 E @R T A I L EmE Y B T3 45
liabilities of the Group prepared on the bases set out in the note below: HEAENBERE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2008 2009 2010 2011

—ZTENF —ETNF —E—TF —B2——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFIT AREEFIT AREETIT AR%T T

Revenue 'ON 66,852 87,363 123,090 156,476
Gross profit EF 15,632 27,058 29,316 42,006
Profit before tax B AR AR 5,414 14,160 18,480 22,475
Profit for the year attributable to VIN/NEIEZE DN

owners of the Company (R FERF 4,352 12,084 14,497 18,851
Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) SIEARZEF|(ARE D) 29 8.1 8.9 9.1

As at 31 December
R+t=—A=+—H
2008 2009 2010 2011

—ZTENF —ETNF —E—TF —E2——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFIT AREEFIT ARETIT AR%T T

Non-current assets ERBEE 28,555 34,558 36,782 46,097
Current assets MENEE 51,311 65,329 98,862 109,033
Current liabilities mENEE 60,723 68,155 49,085 42,556
Net assets FEE 18,951 31,042 86,350 112,574
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